
 
 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 TO ALL OFFERORS: 
 

Reference:  Request for Proposal: RFP# 4957MG 
 

Commodity:  Consulting and Investigative Services 
 
Dated:  July 6, 2020 

 
All offerors are required to acknowledge all RFP addenda in their proposals. 
 
 
1st Round of Questions and Answers 
 

1. Q:  Is this RFP/Contract/Proposal a replacement for a currently existing 

agreement that is coming to an end? 

 

A:  No 

 

2. Q:  If there is a current agreement that exists, can the 

contract/documentation for that agreement be released to better 

understand the nature of past proposals? 

 

A: N/A.  Please see Question #1. 

 

3. Q: In the original RFP document, for example on page 7 at point 9 

(referencing the submission of case studies), does the use of the word 

"Shall' mean "Must" or "May"? Is this intended meaning for "Shall" 

consistent throughout the entire RFP? 

 

A:  The word “shall” means “must”.  As the RFP states, Offerors shall 

provide two (2) case studies. 

 

 

  



 
 

 

4. Q:  What is the anticipated start date for investigative services to be 

performed? 

 

A:  Late August – Early September 

 

 

5. Q:  Are the estimated hours provided per year or per each of the three years 

of the contract? (IX.) 

 

A:  The estimated hours are for the total of the three (3) years.  Please note 

these are estimates as the actual number of hours will be completely 

dependent on number of applications received. 

 

 

6. Q:  If the estimated hours are per the three-year life of the contract, is 

there an estimate of how many hours per year is anticipated? For example, 

the work might naturally be more “front loaded”. (IX.) 

 

A:  The Lottery estimates that more work will be required earlier in the 

contract term. 

 

 

7. Q:  What is the estimated number of due diligence investigations to be 

performed over the three years of the contract, broken down by estimated 

number of company (entities and suppliers) applicants and number of 

individual principals? (IX.) 

 

A: The Lottery cannot determine this as the applications have not been 

submitted.  Please refer to the following link for more information 

www.valottery.com/aboutus/casinosandsportsbetting. 

 

 

  

http://www.valottery.com/aboutus/casinosandsportsbetting


 
 

 

8. Q:  What is the estimated number of U.S. vs. international due diligence 

investigations? (IX.) 

 

A:  The Lottery cannot determine this as the applications have not been 

submitted.  

 

  

9. Q:  Do the estimated hours per category include travel time, including for 

international travel (at the request of the Virginia Lottery)? (IX.) 

 

A:   The estimated hours are an estimate of all billable hours which 

would include travel time.  However, please remember that these are only 

estimates and the Lottery does not guarantee a minimum number of 

hours.   

 

 

10. Q:  Kindly elaborate as to the training expectations. Would you like the 

Contractor to present group training as part of the contract? 

 

A: The Lottery is expecting a group training session for all its 

investigators.  The training should include all aspects of how to perform 

a due diligence investigation, which will also include the financial 

investigation and related techniques.  

 

  

11. Q:  Would you like Contractor to initiate and/or complete the Virginia 

Lottery Security Clearance prior to submission of Proposals? (VI.P.) 

 

A:  No. 

 

 

  



 
 

 

12. Q:  Section IV.A. “Proposal Preparation and Submission Requirements”: 

Given the ongoing COVID-19 situation in the U.S., many organizations are 

working remotely.  With regard to the physical package submission, would 

an electronic submission be acceptable for this RFP instead?  

 

A:  No, please follow submission directions outlined in the RFP on pages 

13 and 14. 

 

 

13. Q:  If electronic submission will be accepted, please provide any guidelines 

for electronic submission.  

 

A: N/A. Please see Question #12. 

 

 

14. Q: If electronic submission is not an option, can the RFP response be sent 

by a courier such as UPS? 

 

A:  Yes, please follow submission directions outlined in the RFP. 

 

 

15. Q:  The Virginia Lottery is scheduled to release its sports betting 

regulations for public comment around July 15th.  Does commenting on 

those regulations preclude a company from bidding on this RFP? 

 

A: No.   

 

 

16. Q:  Can multiple Lead Consultants be listed that are experts in their field? 

 

A:  Yes. 

 

 

  



 
 

 

17. Q:  The RFP cover page includes a space for the Offeror to provide their 

firm’s complete legal name. Is it required to return this page with our 

response? 

 

A:  All of the information requested in the RFP must be submitted.  

Offerors may submit how they choose, provided all the information 

requested in provided. 

 
 

18. Q:  Is there an indication of the number of entities or individuals applicants 

likely to apply for a gaming license in VA?? And the location (domestic or 

international) of the applicant entities or their parent companies? 

 

A:  As stated in the legislation, the Lottery can issue up to 14 sports 

betting licenses and up to five (5) casinos.  Until all applications are 

received, the Lottery cannot reasonably determine how many 

applications there will be.   

 

 

19. Q:  Does the statute or regulations require a report/licensing decision on 

the applications in a defined period of time? 

 

A:  The legislation requires the Lottery to issue sports betting licenses 

within 90 days of the receipt of a completed application.  Casino operator 

license decisions must be made within 12 months of the receipt of a 

completed application.   

 

 

20. Q:  Is the Lottery a designated law enforcement agency to enable the 

investigator to conduct criminal record checks and verifications of 

applicants? 

 

A: Yes.  The Lottery has the authority to conduct criminal record checks 

and verification of applicants.   

 

 



 
 

 

21. Q:  Will the Lottery be using the Multijurisdictional Personal History 

Disclosure Form for individual applicants? 

 

A: No. There will be an electronic licensing application system through 

which applicants will enter their information.  The information requested 

is essentially the same as on the Multijurisdictional Personal History 

Disclosure Form and contractor will be provided with access to this 

electronic licensing system.       

 

 

22. Q:  If an Offeror is going to bid on both Category A and Category B services, 

the RFP requires “a separate proposal for each category.” Can they two 

proposal be joined into a single submission or are two separate 

submissions required? 

 

A.  Both proposals may be submitted together.  Each proposal must be 

clearly  marked and identified. 

 

23. Q:  In Section Q. -  Small, Women and Minority-Owned (SWAM-Owned) 

Business Subcontracting and Evidence of Compliance , the stated goal of 

the Lottery is that 42% of purchases are made from SWAM-owned 

businesses. The Offeror requirements for Category A. – Investigative 

Services includes that “the Offeror shall have the ability to provide 

investigative services for cases of varied scope and size including 

international background checks. Additionally, the Offeror requirements 

for Category B. Consulting Services states that the “Offeror shall have the 

ability to provide consultants with no less than five (5) years of relevant 

gaming experience.”  

Given these specific requirements of “investigative services including 

international background checks” as well as “ability to provide consultants 

with no less than five (5) years  of relevant gaming experience”, would the 

Lottery, subsequent to a good faith effort by the Offeror to contract with 

subcontractor with this specific expertise, be open to a waiver or partial 

waiver of the 42% stated goal? 

 



 
 

 

A:  The 42% is a goal for the Agency, not necessarily this individual 

procurement, so it is not required.  But SWaM is an evaluation criteria and 

the Lottery encourages SWaM vendors to participate both as Offerors and 

subcontractors.  Please follow the RFP instructions for identifying any 

proposed SWaM spend.    

 


